AGENDA
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION -
REGULAR MEETING

April 2,2025 7:00 PM

=

CALLMEETING TO ORDER

N

ROLL CALL

3. PRESENTATION
A. MI Solar for All

4. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDAITEMS

5. COMMUNICATIONS
A. 2024 Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Report

6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
7. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES - MARCH 5, 2025 REGULAR MEETING

8. NEW BUSINESS
A. 2025 Green Grant Award Recommendation
B. 2024 Climate Sustainability Funds

9. UNFINSHED BUSINESS

10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
A. Staff (Update on Climate Sustainability Fund expenditures)
B. Liaisons:
e Planning Commission
e Land Preservation Advisory Board
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority
e Parks Commission
C. Teams:
e Energy Team
e (Green Team
e Food & Composting Team

e Green Burial Team
D. Haslett/Okemos High School

11. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

12. OTHER MATTERS AND COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

13. ADJOURNMENT

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board by contacting: Township Manager Tim
Dempsey, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required.

Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall ~ —
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us



m?

TOWNSHI P

3.A

To: Environmental Commission
From: Jack Hughes, Project Engineer
Date: March 28,2025

Re: MI Solar for All Presentation

A staff member from the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE)
will be coming to present to the Commission about the MI Solar for All program.

Should you wish to learn more about the program, please visit their website by clicking here.

Lo . . . . — A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime commumm

meridian.mi.us


https://www.michigan.gov/egle/about/organization/climate-and-energy/mi-healthy-climate-plan/funding/ggrf/mi-solar

GREATER L ANSING www.mywatersheds.org

REGIONAL COMMITTEE
FOR STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
www.mywatersheds.org

SR 4

. ANNWUAL REPORT

¥
rH ;l‘ i

o

_ Grand River Photo Courtesy Pure Michigan
- .._Ir? 'J.. j I: I

Guiding the implementation of
stormwater programs for 17
communities within the Grand

River, the Red Cedar River, and the
Looking Glass River watersheds
since 1999.



http://www.mywatersheds.org

LETTER FROM OUR CHAIR

LRC communities assessed the
G effectiveness of their efforts to

engage citizens in actions to improve
watershed health in 2024. To truly gauge
the success of our collaborative efforts
to improve local water quality, the GLRC
conducted its fourth regional water survey
of residents throughout Clinton, Eaton,
and Ingham counties. The Greater Lansing
Regional Water Quality Education Survey
provided valuable feedback on residents’
understanding of and involvement in
watershed protection efforts in the tri-county
region.

The scientifically valid survey results allowed
the GLRC to update their Public Education
Plan and Public Participation Plan with
future goals. These guiding documents are
part of the six minimum control measures
each GLRC community must implement to
obtain their stormwater permits and control
polluted runoff.

In addition to public education and
involvement measures, members also
worked to improve pollution prevention
and good housekeeping at their municipal
operations. Communities participated in the
2024 National Salt Symposium, discovering
the impacts of chloride and the latest
research in salt reduction methods. Many
members were also able to participate in
“Smart Salting” certification trainings for
roads, parking lots, and sidewalks.

Staff from member communities were also
trained in illicit discharge detection and
elimination in 2024, another requirement
of the stormwater permit. Combined with
the educational campaigns conducted and
new educational brochures GLRC produced
this past year, members moved the needle

page 02 | GLRC 2024 Annual Report

forward to improve the quality of our lakes,
rivers, and streams. Read on to learn more
and use our website and social media tools
to discover simple steps you can take to
reduce the discharge of pollutants in our
waterways.

Paul C. Pratt
Ingham County Deputy Drain Commissioner
GLRC Chair

-

\ \\_':;w
U\

Downtown Photo Courtesy Choose Lansing\

ROLE OF THE GLRC

The Greater Lansing Regional Committee for
Stormwater Management (GLRC) is a guiding body
comprised of regulated Municipal Separate Storm
Sewer System (MS4) communities within the Greater
Lansing region of Clinton, Eaton, and Ingham counties.

ABOUT US

The GLRC was established in 1999 to guide
the implementation of the stormwater
program for participating communities
within the Red Cedar River, Grand River,
and Looking Glass River watersheds. The
GLRC is administered by the Tri-County
Regional Planning Commission.

WHAT IS AN MS4?

MS4 communities capture runoff water in
catch basins and pipes that lead directly
to rivers, streams, and lakes without being
processed at a treatment plant. Oil, pet
waste, and other pollutants “hitch a ride”
with runoff water, enter the storm system,
and accumulate in waterbodies.

To limit pollution, the Environmental
Protection Agency requires operators of
MS4s in urbanized areas to implement
programs and practices to control polluted
stormwater runoff through the use of
National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination
System, or NPDES
permits. Members work
collaboratively on regional
issues to meet

permit requirements.

GLRC MEMBERS

Clinton County

Clinton County Road Commission
Delhi Charter Township
Delta Charter Township
DeWitt Charter Township
City of DeWitt

City of East Lansing

Eaton County

City of Grand Ledge

Ingham County

Lansing Charter Township
Lansing School District

City of Lansing

City of Mason

Meridian Township
Michigan State University
Waverly Community Schools

Looking Glass River

GLRC 2024 Annual Report page 03



GUIDING PRINCIPLES

2024 REPORT
BY THE NUMBERS

To prevent stormwater pollution and improve the health of watersheds in Clinton, Eaton, and
Ingham counties, GLRC members work to meet the six “minimum control measures” as part of
their NPDES permit, with a special focus on regional outreach and education. The Tri-County
Regional Planning Commission (Tri-County) offers program staff, administrative, and financial
support, with GLRC members contributing annual dues. The following committees coordinate

and do the work necessary to ensure GLRC maintains compliance with permit requirements. Fiscal Year 2024 Category FY 2024 Expenses
Guides the overall Tri-County Administrative Cost and Support Staff $119,510
Public public education, )
. participation, outreach, lllicit Discharge Elimination Plan (IDEP) Committee $107
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION/INVOLVEMENT Education and involvement process
Providng opporiunlies T e pacbeton Plan for the stormwater Public Education Plan (PEP) Committee $9,865
@ including effectively publicizing public hearings, (PEP) program. This effort
and/or encouraging citizen representatives on a . . H * H
! B —— ool at | includes evaluation and Association Memberships $595
assessment of public
PUBLIC EDUCATION knowledge and activities. Printing and Travel $3,640
Distributing educational materials and performing . .
oultlre:ch t;) inforrrlcitizenifagourt]the impacrt]s Water Quahty Educa‘hon Survey $26’600
poliuting stormwater runo Ischarges can have on

water quality.

ILLICIT DISCHARGE DETECTION & ELIMINATION

Developing and implementing a plan to detect and
eliminate illicit discharges to the storm sewer system.
Activities include developing a system map and
informing communities about hazards associated with
illegal discharges and improper disposal of waste.

CONSTRUCTION SITE RUNOFF CONTROL

Developing, implementing, and enforcing an erosion

and sediment control program for construction

activities that disturb one or more acres of land.

Controls could include silt fences and temporary

stormwater detention ponds. ﬁ

POST-CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF CONTROL

Developing, implementing, and enforcing a program to
address discharges of post-construction stormwater

runoff from new development and redevelopment areas.
Applicable controls could include preventative actions
such as protecting sensitive areas or the use of structural

BMPs such as grassed swales or porous pavement.

POLLUTION PREVENTION/GOOD HOUSEKEEPING

Developing and implementing a program with the goal of
preventing or reducing pollutant runoff from municipal
operations. The program must include municipal staff
training on pollution prevention measures and techniques,
such as regular street sweeping, reduction in the use of
pesticides or street salt, or frequent catch basin cleaning.

page 04 | GLRC 2024 Annual Report

Ilicit
Discharge
Elimination
Program
(IDEP)
Committee

Total

Maximum
DETVY
Load

(TMDL)
Committee

Guides implementation
of the program, mapping
guidelines, field-sampling
protocols, and how

the watershed will be
monitored for progress.
The IDEP Committee

has reviewed pet waste
management, septic tank
maintenance issues, IDEP
ordinances, and provided
staff training.

Makes recommendations
regarding the Grand River
and Red Cedar River E.
coli TMDL requirements.
The Committee provides
education and updates to
GLRC members to assist
in the development and
implementation of TMDL
programs.

17 13

Community Committee
Members Meetings

1,592 1,361

Engagements Augmented
with the Reality Sandbox
Public Interactions

$160,317

21

Outreach
Events

2,305

Educational
Materials
Distributed

GLRC 2024 Annual Report |  page 05



COMMUNITY
ENGAGEMENT

The GLRC'’s Augmented Reality Sandbox
reached nearly 1,400 students through
presentations while being hosted at the East
Lansing Public Library, MSU Science Festival,
and Leslie Middle School.

01. Organic Social Media

In 2024, the GLRC reached over 22,496
people organically through its Facebook
page and an additional 4,611 through
Instagram and X. GLRC has 1,423
followers on Facebook, 382 on X, and 77
on Instagram, which debuted in 2023.

02. Paid Social Media

Paid social media campaigns via Meta
with educational videos were conducted
on where to recycle household hazardous
waste, keeping fertilizer and yard waste
away from storm drains, and how to
protect your septic system. Impressions
on these three campaigns totaled over
100,400.

page 06 | GLRC 2024 Annual Report

Through its Public Education Plan,

the GLRC helps encourage changes in

behavior to protect our surface waters
by engaging with tri-county residents.

03. Quarterly Newsletter

New this year, GLRC created a digital
version of its quarterly newsletter. The
first two issues had open rates of 42% and
44%, and included resources, tips on how
to be Stormwater Smart, and community
watershed events that engage citizens.

04. Outreach Events

Over 2,300 educational materials on
reducing stormwater pollution were
distributed at 21 outreach events like
the Quiet Adventures Symposium, MSU
Science Festival, Green Fairs, Arbor Days,
Conservation Carnival, Party for the
Planet, Clinton County Youth Day, and
Red Cedar River Days.

REGIONAL WATER QUALITY

SURVEY

35%

30%
30%

Great effect

IR 20%

I s
Moderste <l N s

, S 19%
e etet O 21
I s

i s
I 5%
No effect -
8%
PN 1%

0% 20% 40%

B 2024 [ 2018 ] 2012 [ 2008

PERSONAL
ACTIONS AFFECT
WATER QUALITY

To maintain MS4

permit compliance,
communities must assess
their Public Education
Plan and evaluate the
effectiveness of their
outreach efforts. The
GLRC hired professionals
to conduct its fourth
scientifically valid survey
of 603 residents within

80%

Q. 3 How much do you think the way you maintain your home (e.g., lawn care, trash disposal,
pet care) affects the quality of water in lakes in streams in the community where you live?

the Looking Glass, Grand,
and Red Cedar River
watersheds. View the

KEY SURVEY FINDINGS —

e 95% of residents are concerned
about the pollution in
waterways.

e 45% of residents or someone in
their households have acted to
protect water resources in the
past five years.

e 69% of residents think
stormwater goes directly to
lakes and streams without
treatment.

e 45% of residents say they live in
a watershed.

o 29% of residents felt
stormwater runoff contributed
most to water pollution, while
32% indicated factories and .
16% agricultural operations.

results at mywatersheds.
org/water-quality-surveys.

. Strongly Agree . Agree . Meither Agree nor Disagree . Disagree . Strongly Disagree

Q. 6 Please indicate your level of agreement with the following statement:
“The quality of local streams and rivers where | live affects the Great Lakes.”

GLRC 2024 Annual Report |  page 07


https://www.mywatersheds.org/water-quality-surveys

o

o

Red Cedgr River

“GLRC's collaboratlve model prowdes con51stent and valuable reglonal stormwater
management. The GLRC continues to be a strong, unified group that delivers timely
and vital stormwater education that protects our waterways and the health of our
(o]} un|t|es It also creatlvely explores new avenues of outreach and education,
WWC

: Patrick KI|ne

Environmental Quality Analyst Water Resources Division

- Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy

CONNECT WITH US

This report was produced by the Tri-County Regional Planning Commission. Follow the GLRC
and Tri-County online for updates on regional planning and stormwater management!

GLRC4Stormwater X GLRC4Stormwater
TriCountyPlanning MI|_TCRPC
( -) MyWatersheds
O MyWatersheds E Tri-County Regional Planning Commission

mywatersheds.org
k mitcrpc.org



https://www.facebook.com/GLRC4stormwater
https://www.instagram.com/mywatersheds/
https://x.com/glrc4stormwater
https://www.youtube.com/@mywatersheds6281
https://www.mywatersheds.org/

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

REGULAR MEETING ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION -REVISED DRAFT ON 3/31/25-
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos MI 48864-1198

517.853.4000, Township Hall Room

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 5, 2025, 7:00PM

PRESENT: Harrison Batten, Laura Belisle, Tom Frazier, Yu Man Lee, Nickolas Lentz, Bill
McConnell, Richard Miksicek, Cynthia Peterson, and John Sarver

ABSENT: None

STAFF: Dan Opsommer, Deputy Township Manager
Jack Hughes, Project Engineer

1. CALL MEETINGTO ORDER

Chair McConnell called the February 5, 2025, Township Environmental Commission meeting to
order at 7:00 pm.

2. ROLL CALL
Deputy Manager Opsommer called the roll of the Commission.
Commissioner Batten, Commissioner Belisle, Commissioner Frazier, Commissioner Lee, Trustee
Lentz, Chair McConnell, Commissioner Miksicek, Commissioner Peterson, and Commissioner
Sarver present at 7:01 p.m.

3. PRESENTATION
None

4. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS
No public comment.

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Chair McConnell proposed to amend the agenda by adding agenda item 6.D Discussion of Future
Presentations ideas.

Without objection, the agenda, as amended, was approved unanimously.
6. NEW BUSINESS
A. Financial Overview of the Green Grants, 2021-2024

Deputy Manger Opsommer presented a spreadsheet that provided a historical overview of
all Green Grant awards from 2021-2024, including:

e Recipient
e Year of Award

Page 1



Award Amount
Amount Paid
Remaining Funds
Project Status

The spreadsheet also provided the Commission with a cumulative table by year.

Trustee Lentz asked what timelines the award recipients are under with the grant. Deputy
Manager Opsommer shared that the grant agreement requires recipients to complete their
project by December 30 of the award year and that grant recipients have the ability to
request extensions when necessary.

Commissioner Miksicek asked if there would be preference given to school districts
applying if the total amount of funds requested from all applicants exceeds the total annual
funding.

Chair McConnell suggested that the Commission transition to agenda item 6.B given that the
discussion is more germane to this agenda item.

2025 Green Grants

Deputy Manager Opsommer referenced that the 2024 Green Grant materials were in the
Commissions packet and suggested that the Commission weigh in on the following subjects:

e What organizations should be eligible? Are there any types of organizations that the
Commission believes should not be eligible?

e What types of projects should be eligible?

e Should we score projects using specific criteria? Should we weight certain criteria higher
than others, such as weight environmental or sustainability criteria higher than
community place making criteria?

Chair McConnell offered a fourth subject for the Commission’s consideration: Do we want to
provide funding guidance to applicants?

Commissioner Sarver stated the first year the major priority was to fund projects associated
with school districts and that this opportunity was expanded in the second and future years.
Commissioner Sarver asked if there has been any burden on staff to administer the Green
Grant program and if there are any legal issue in terms of what types of organizations can
receive funding.

Deputy Manager Opsommer stated that the Township’s only legal constraint in terms of
awarding grants is that the grant recipient must expend those funds to serve a public
purpose. For example, a grant to install a welcome to Haslett sign in the Haslett Road right-
of-way, does serve a public purpose.

Commissioner Sarver stated that he had heard that the Township Board would like to have
more interaction with homeowners associations (HOA) and inquired what the intent was
behind that?

Trustee Lentz stated that the Township Board heard from many residents that they didn’t
feel like the Township Board was reaching them where they are at. HOAs are neighborhood

Page 2



focused and serve as a conduit for the Township to engage residents at a neighborhood
focus.

Deputy Manager Opsommer stated that the administration of the Green Grants is not a
burden on Township staff.

Deputy Manager Opsommer also shared that many HOAs in the Township have open space
parcels due to the Township’s zoning ordinance, specifically the PUD portion of the zoning
ordinance. These open space parcels can be negatively impacted by the spread of invasive
species, just as the Township’s land preserve can be. Therefore, allowing HOAs to apply for
Green Grants does make sense from the vantage point that HOAs have to steward open
space acreage.

Chair McConnell asked Commissioner Sarver how he believes the evaluation of the grant
applications has evolved over time and that his understanding is that the Green Grant
Committee meets to review all applications, develops scoring, and then makes a
recommendation to the Environmental Commission.

Commissioner Sarver stated that three scoring criteria have historically been used:
environmental impact, outreach to the community, and is there a viable plan for the project.
Outreach to the community is important because these grants are often funding small
projects that can be used as a demonstration to the larger community. Overall,
Commissioner Sarver has used broad criteria when scoring applications. There haven't been
that many applications in prior years, which has prevented the Environmental Commission
from having to not award funds to an applicant due to a lack of available funds.

Commissioner Belisle asked how many projects have not been awarded funding in prior
years.

Commissioner Sarver stated he is not aware of any applicants who have not been awarded
funding in prior years. Commissioner Sarver stated that Township staff have helped
applicants submit reasonable proposals to avoid situations such as this.

Commissioner Sarver speculated that demand for these grants could increase over time as
the community becomes more aware of this opportunity.

Chair McConnell asked how much volunteer labor and in-kind donations, such as plants,
have been factored into the Green Grant Committee’s decision-making.

Commissioner Sarver stated that nearly all of these projects have had volunteer labor
and/or donated materials involved.

Commissioner Frazier noted that the materials do state that match funding, volunteer labor,
and in-kind donations are encouraged.

Commissioner Lee suggested that we consider encourage applicants to bring forward
projects that align with Meridian Township’s 2023 Climate Sustainability Plan.

Chair McConnell stated that he is skeptical of ranked scoring criteria.
Chair McConnell asked who would be willing to serve on a small subcommittee to bring

forward a proposal for changes to the Green Grant materials.

Page 3



Chair McConnell asked Township staff for a recommendation on timelines.

Deputy Manager Opsommer suggested a timeline of getting the grant materials released to
the public in about 2 weeks so that applications could be due by the end of March. Township
staff and the Green Grant Committee could then meet to review and score the applications,
and bring a full recommendation to the Environmental Commission at their April meeting.

Commissioner Sarver and Commissioner Miksicek offered to serve on the subcommittee to
update the grant application, instructions and agreement.

Chair McConnell thanked Commissioner Sarver and Commissioner Miksicek for serving on
the 2025 Green Grant Committee.

Deputy Manager Opsommer stated that Township staff would try to maximize the number
of days that the public is able to apply.

Commissioner Lee asked if we want to list the average size of previous awards.

Deputy Manager Opsommer stated the Committee could look at listing suggested amounts
for applicants to apply for based on the historical data.

Deputy Manager Opsommer also suggested that the Committee could look at asking
applicants to share more information regarding in-kind donations and volunteer labor
hours so that could be quantified a little more in the future.

Resolution in Support of Meridian Township’s FY26 CDS Grant Application

Project Engineer Hughes gave the Commission an overview of the FY26 CDS Grant
opportunity through Senator Gary Peters’ Office, the nine projects that the Township
evaluated, and an overview of the solar concept plan the Township has developed for the
Public Safety Building, which is being recommended as the project that the Township
applies to receive grant funding for.

The proposed project for which the Township is seeking funding is the addition of solar
arrays to the roof of the Public Safety Building and the parking lot to the north of this
building. This project would include a 204.22 kilowatt system, producing 244,677 kilowatt-
hours annually. Upon completion of this project, the Township estimate that we would be
able to produce just over 100% of the annual energy consumption of the Public Safety
Building.

This project would tie into the existing Public Safety Building solar infrastructure, which is
connected to the electrical grid, so the Township can supply the grid when we produce more
energy than we consume.

Commissioner Sarver shared that the Energy Team is aware of this grant opportunity and is
thrilled. Commissioner Sarver stated that the fact that Township has adopted a Climate
Sustainability Plan that sets a goal of obtaining 50% of electricity used for Township
operations from renewable energy sources by 2025 and 100% by 2035 may help us with
our grant application.

Trustee Lentz shared the Township Board did support a similar resolution on March 4.
Trustee Lentz also stated that Township staff had presented the Township Board with an
Page 4



update on where we currently stand as it relates to those goals. Trustee Lentz stated that the
data shows that we are currently at 28 percent of our energy coming from renewable
resources. This, if approved, would put us at about 53%, only about 1 year behind our goal
of obtaining 50% of electricity used for Township operations from renewable energy
sources by 2025.

Commissioner Miksicek as if the Township has identified funds for the 50 percent match
that is required for this grant.

Deputy Manager Opsommer shared that he had spoken to the Township Manager and the
Township is prepared to provide the matching funds through the Township’s General Fund.

Deputy Manager Opsommer asked that the Commission amend the third whereas clause so
that it conforms to the version of the resolution that the Township Board adopted on March
4.

Without objection, the amendment was adopted unanimously.

The Resolution in Support of Meridian Township’s FY26 CDS Grant Application was
approved unanimously.

D. Discussion of Future Presentations
Chair McConnell stated that he has some future presentations he would like to propose:
1. Food Rescue, a local nonprofit that has expressed a desire in presenting in the past
2. Presentation that overviews Township wetland data
3. A presentation from the Ingham County Drain Commissioner’s Office regarding the
Okemos Consolidated Drain Project, past projects, and future projects

4. 2025 Green Grant recipients for project updates

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

None

8. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCMENTS

A. Staff

Deputy Manager Opsommer updated the Commission on the staffing transition the
Township is currently working on for the Commission.

Due to an upcoming retirement, the Commission will be staffed by Project Engineer Jack
Hughes moving forward. Deputy Manager Opsommer stated that he would be assisting as
the Township makes the transition.

The Commission and staff also discussed future agenda items to discuss the current status
and future uses of the remaining Climate Sustainability funding.

B. Liaisons
Chair McConnell shared that the Planning Commission was working on modernizing our

Township’s parking schedule in the Zoning Ordinance.
Page 5



Commissioner Lee stated that the Land Preservation Advisory Board has not met since her
most recent report.

Commissioner Sarver shared that there are currently no updates for the Brownfield
Redevelopment Authority.

Chair McConnell noted that he is working to establish liaisons with the Park Commission.
Commissioner Miksicek stated he is available to serve as the liaison.

The Commissioners discussed the benefits of the Joint Meeting of the Township’s Boards
and Commissions and how wonderful it is to see the engagement we have across the
community.

Teams

Commissioner Sarver stated that he has sent on the Energy Team items from the Climate
Sustainability Plan to the appropriate Township staff.

Commissioner Sarver shared that there would be an upcoming Solarize Meridian meeting
held on April 9 from 6:30-8 p.m. at Henry’s Place in Okemos. This event was added to the

Township’s website.

Commissioner Frazier stated that the upcoming Farmer’s Market would include a Green
Team event that would include interactive components for children.

Commissioner Frazier shared that the Township’s Spring Recycling event would be held on
Saturday, April 26.

Commissioner Frazier stated that the Green Team meets on the second Thursday at 4 p.m.
at Schuler Books in the Meridian Mall.

No update from the Food & Composting Team.

Commissioner Frazier stated that the Green Burial Team was working to finalize a
presentation for the Township Board.

Haslett/Okemos High School

Commissioner Batten stated that they are working to schedule a field trip to the East
Lansing Recycling Center.

Commissioner Batten also shared that they are pursuing a grant to acquire rechargeable
batteries for classroom supplies and working to help find volunteers for the upcoming

Green Team event.

Commissioner Batten stated that Haslett Key Club is working to obtain a grant to renovate
the courtyard at Haslett High School.

Other

No reports.
Page 6



9.

10.

11.

12.

CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS

No public comment.

OTHER MATTERS AND COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

Trustee Lentz shared that the Township Board approved a resolution in support of another
grant that the Township is pursuing. The grant application is to secure funding to prospectively
construct a trailhead for the MSU to Lake Lansing Trail at 5280 Okemos Road, a Township-
owned property adjacent to the entrance to Nancy Moore Park.

Commissioner Batten shared that he would be presenting at the Michigan Science Teacher
Association’s event on Friday.

Chair McConnell shared an excerpt of an email he sent to the Township Supervisor as he
reflected on all of the positive from the Joint Meeting of the Township’s Board and Commissions.

Approval of the Minutes
Commissioner Frazier noted two corrections to the February 5, 2025 meeting minutes.

Without objection, the minutes of the February 5, 2025 meeting, as amended, were
approved unanimously.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 8:26 pm.

Page 7



m
MERIDIAN

~——" __

To: Environmental Commission

8.A

From: Dan Opsommer, Deputy Township Manager
Director of Public Works and Engineering

Date: March 28,2025

Re: 2025 Green Grant Award Recommendation

The 2025 Green Grant Committee convened on March 31 to review the applications received by
prior to the March 30 5 p.m. deadline.

The 2025 Green Grant Committee is recommending the following awards:

Amount Min Amount Award
Applicant Requested Requested Recommendation
Cornell Woods Homeowners Association $7,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
Girl Scouts Heart of Michigan Troop 30037 $1,000.00 $800.00 $1,000.00
Mid-Michigan Land Conservancy $5,200.00 TBD TBD
Montessori Radmoor School $3,950.00 $2,000.00 $3,950.00
Pine Creek II of Haslett Condo Association  $1,000.00 $300.00 $1,000.00
YMCA of Metropolitan Lansing-Parkwood
YMCA Branch $2,607.00 $1,480.00 $2,607.00

TOTALS: $20,757.00 $9,580.00 $13,557.00
AVERAGE: $3,459.50 $1,596.67 $2,259.50

The Green Grant Committee is obtaining additional information from the Mid-Michigan Land
Conservancy before making a recommendation on this application. We will bring this application
back to the Commission at your May meeting with a recommendation.

The Committee informed the Cornell Woods Homeowners Association that it would revisit the
award that it has made for this project based on the answers to the following questions:

1. The Committee would like the HOA to consider making this bioswale open to school
groups from Cornell Elementary. Would the HOA be willing to consider this use of its land
after the improvements have been made to the property through this grant?

2. Ifthe Committee is willing to allow Okemos Public Schools to use this area for educational
purposes, would you be willing to ask Okemos Public Schools if they would be interested in
using the site for educational purposes?

Lo . . . . — A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime commumm

meridian.mi.us



Memo to Township Board
February 20, 2024
Re: Disposal of Surplus Equipment

3. Ifthe answer to questions 1 and 2 are yes, then would you be willing to include an
educational sign that details the species that are planted and some basic information about
each species?

4. Lastly, the Committee is wondering if you would consider working with your contractor to
reduce the footprint of the project from .25 acre to a smaller footprint and excavate about
2’ below the existing grade in the lowest lying area of the property where storm water
currently ponds after sever rain events so that this would serve as stormwater detention
like a traditional bioswale would. If this were pursued, we would recommend a 1:4 slope
from the existing grade down to the bottom of the bioswale.

If this is something that the HOA wishes to pursue, can you please work with your
contractor to determine how many square yards the bioswale would cover if we were to
award the minimum $5,000 versus the maximum of $7,000?

We look forward to discussing this in greater detail with the Environmental Commission.
The following motion has been prepared for the Commission’s consideration:

MOVE TO APPROVE AWARDS OF $5,000 FOR THE CORNELL WOODS HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION; $1,000 FOR THE GIRL SCOUTS HEART OF MICHIGAN TROOP 30037;
$3,950 FOR MONTESSORI RADMOOR SCHOOL; $1,000 FOR PINE CREEK II OF
HASLETT CONDO ASSOCIATION; AND $2,607 FOR THE YMCA OF METROPOLITAN
LANSING-PARKWOOD YMCA BRANCH.

Future Attachments:

1. 2025 Green Grant Applications (Alphabetical Order)

— A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



W r!l IH.:UNA?‘”

2025 Green Grants Application

Applications are due by 5:00 pm on Sunday, March 30, 2025*
In previous years, grant awards ranged from $300 to $4,500

*Depending on the number of applications received during the initial grant application window from March 19-30,
the Township may hold a second grant application window in April 2025.

Date: 03/21/2025

Name of Organization: Cornell Wood Homeowners

Primary Contact: Sarah Allen
Phone: 517-881-5244
Cell: 517-881-5244

Email: cornellwoodassociation@hc

A brief description of the project (i.e. location, scope of work, etc.):

Convert approximately 1/4 Acre of turfgrass in the Cornell Woods North Common Area to a biodiverse
Notwe plant awel sca pe

Does the project align with Meridian Township’s 2023 Climate Sustainability Plan? If so, please

explain:

Yes it does. It will 1. Plant many trees and plants to covert CO2, Create a cooling space, reducegas
EMmiLipns From Mo 4 blowers
Team leader(s) and team member(s):

Sarah Allen, Miely Miller, and Charlie Kotz

Outreach plan to inform the community:

We will use facebook, our neighborhood newsletter and the Cornell Woods PTA to inform the comuwskﬂ
Expected materials and/or services required to complete the project:

Contracw with Bukk Schneider (WildType), herbicie for grass removal, native seed plantings, ista
iNsdall thicle wioo & p lants
Project schedule (The grant agreement requires that projects be completed by December 31,
2025. The Township is willing to grant extensions if needed, but the applicant is required to
request extensions in writing):

Spring of’2024: Site Preparation, Remove turf grass and oversee with native wildflowers. Summer
Waden4d NurTare. veed seeals), Full Plont AN atwve Trees s pe{‘&NMﬁd/;L_'
Total Project Budget: 4 — . ~
* T o O



Matching and/or in-kind contributions are encouraged. In-kind contribution are goods and/or
services/labor hours that are donated toward the project (e.g. plants donated, volunteer labor hours, etc.). If
proposing matching and/or in-kind contributions, please provide estimated amounts in your project budget.
In-kind contributions can be quantified by simply listing the estimated number of volunteer hours that will
be contributed through completion of the proposed project.

7,000

Award Amount Applied for: $

How scalable is the project?
The Township may not have available funds to award the full requested amount. Please explain if the project
could be scaled back and list the minimum award amount your organization would need to proceed with a

project.
The size of plot for native plantings and trees could be reduced if necessary

5,000

Minimum Award Amount Required to proceed with a scaled back project: $

Attachments: Please include a W-9 form. Other optional items might include an operation and/or
maintenance plan, pictures, rough designs/concept drawings, etc. Please list attachments:

1.

Please See Attachement



GREEN GRANT PROPOSAL

CORNELL WOODS NEIGHBORHOOD

2025



INTRODUCTION

The Cornell Woods Neighborhood Association is interested in continuing its efforts to
“rewild” a portion of the neighborhood 2 1/2 acre common area. This large parcel, located in
the northeast corner of the subdivision, is currently planted with turf grass, that is mowed
regularly during the growing season. Four large native deciduous trees were planted in the
northeast corner of this field in the Fall of 2022, thanks to Meridian Township Green Grant
funding. This new funding request will enable us to further enhance the area where the trees
have been planted. This next phase, to be started in the Spring of 2025 would involve:

e Removing approximately %4 acre of grass, through application of herbicide
e Overseeding with native flowering plants
e Planting small woody trees and shrubs

DISCUSSION

This project seeks to attempt to create biodiversity, where there currently is none. These
new plantings will, with time, create a habitat that is beneficial to songbirds, and the insects that
they feed upon. Fortunately, this area is situated at the lower end of a downslope, so it receives
water runoff from the entire field. This will minimize any need for supplemental watering. There
is currently no shade, so the new plants will receive an abundance of sunlight throughout the
day. There is an existing wetland, that runs along the border of Cornell Road, just to the east.
However, the concrete sidewalk that borders the common area creates a barrier between the
wetland and the grass common area. The trees that were planted three years ago, plus this
new planting project will eventually create cooling shade over this entire area.

The financial cost of mowing this large field has been a cause for concern among
Cornell Woods residents, as this has evolved into the major part of the annual “neighborhood
association dues”. “Why are we paying so much to have the grass cut on this parcel with such
regularity, when there are only a few residences that back up to this field”, has become a logical
inquiry from residents, as the cost escalates each year. Removing this %4 section from the
regular mowing schedule will provide a small, but positive step in the right direction. Reducing
CO2 emissions and decreasing the noise from gas powered leaf blowers, etc., are additional
benefits of this project.

Finally, this common area is located about a 5 minute walk from Cornell Elementary
school. The students at Cornell could learn a great deal about ecology, plant identification, bird
life, etc., by making observations in this part of Cornell Woods.



COST ESTIMATION

Mini Ferest
i #oftreesor costofone  subtatal of  bags of mulchcost of much / subtota) for
shrubs it cost - cage cages perplast  plant mulch
Teltis occidentairs - Hackberry - 7 galion 3 TS0 AT SIA0D IO a 00 51000
Cereis canndensis - Redbud - gallon 3 $13 80 $41.40 $12.00 $36.00 1 $5.00 $1500
Comus alterifolia - Alternate Leaf Dogwood - gallon 3 $13.50 $41.40 $1200 $36.00 1 $5.00 $15.00
Gymnocladus divicus - Kentucky Coffee Tree - 7 gallon 2 $73.50 $147.00 $14.00 $28.00 1 500 1000
Linodendron !uhplfm Tulip Pnph.r 7 gallon 2 $73.50 $147.00 $14.00 $28.00 i $5.00 $1600
Platanus occid pruning pot 6 $4.95 $2970 $5.00 $30.00 02 $100 3600
Quercus alba - White O-k RootMaka pruniing pot 6 $5.25 $31.50 $5.00 $30.00 02 $1.00 8600
Quercus bicolor - Swamp White Oak - RootMaker pruning pot 6 5495 $29.70 $5.00 $30.00 62 $1.00 $6.00
Quercus macrocarpa - Bur Oak - RoatMaker pruning pot 6 $495 $29.70 $500 $30.00 82 $1.00 $6.00
Quercus mueblenbngu ~ Chinguapin Oak - 7 galion 2 $73.50 $147.00 $14.00 $28 00 1 $5.00 1000
Quercus - Chinquapin Oak - RootMaker pruning pot 6 5495 $29.70 $5.00 $30.00 02 $1.00 5600
Quercus rubra - Red C)ak 7 gallon 2 $73.50 $147.00 $14.00 $26.00 i $5.00 $10.00
Quercns rubra - Red Oak - RootMaker prusiing pot 13 $4.95 52970 $5.00 $30.00 02 $100 $600
Tilia americana - Basswood - 7 gallon 2 §73.50 $147.00 $14.00 $28.00 1 $5.00 51000
Shrubs
Cormus amomum ~ Silky Dogwood - gallon 3 $11.45 $3435 $12.00 $36.00 05 $2.50 $7.50
Comus serteea - Red-osier Dogwood - gallon 3 $1145 $34.35 $12.00 $36.00 0.5 $2.50 $7.50
Corylus americana - American Hazelnut - gallon 3 $13 80 $41.40 $12.00 $36.00 0s 3250 $7.50
Dierviila lonicera - Bush Honeysuckle - gallon 6 $il.45 86870 $i200 $72.00 05 $2.50 51500
Sambutcus racesnosa - Red-Berried Elder - gatlon 6 $11.45 $68.70 $1200 $72.00 05 250 $15.00
Vitatrnum lentage - Nannyberry - gallon 3 $11.45 $34.35 $12.00 $36.00 0.5 $2.50 $7.50 |
) $1.426.65 $708 00 SI600 SYANIAS
SAANAE 1)
S0 1

The above table lists the plant identification, and cost for each plant. The objective is to
create a density of favorable native plants, that will “take over” the area, and crowd out invasive
grass and weeds. These are all plants native to this region, that should thrive and successfully
transform this area. We are able to increase or decrease the total number of plants, depending
on the Green Grant dollar amount. The grant amount that we are requesting is $7.000.

This would allow for plant costs, labor, seeding, and other items such as mulch, and wire
deer screening. The company that we have determined has the expertise and experience, is
Wildtype. Bill Schneider has discussed this project with us, and has provided excellent

guidance. He is a licensed herbicide applicator, and has worked on many similar projects.

We are hopeful that this project is deemed acceptable by Meridian Township, and we are
sincerely thankful for the Green Grant team taking the time to consider our request.

CORNELL WOODS NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION



2/18/25
Mini Forest

Trees i of trees or it coat subtotal costofone  subtotal of  bags of mulchcost of much /subtotal for
shrubs cages mulch
Celtis occidentalis - Hackberry - 7 gallon 2 $73.50 $147.00 $14.00 8-28.00 1 $5.00 $10.00
Cercis canadensis - Redbud - gallon 3 $13.80 $41.40 $12.00 $36.00 1 $5.00 $15.00
Comus altemifolia - Alternate Leaf Dogwood - gallon 3 $13.80 $41.40 $12.00 $36.00 1 $5.00 $15.00
Gymnocladus dioicus - Kentucky Coffee Tree - 7 gallon 2 $73.50 $147.00 $14.00 $28.00 1 $5.00 $10.00
Liriodendron tulipifera - Tulip Poplar - 7 gallon 2 $73.50 $147.00 $14.00 $28.00 1 $5.00 $10.00
Platanus occidentalis - Sycamore - RootMaker pruning pot 6 $4.95 $29.70 $5.00 $30.00 02 $1.00 $6.00
Quercus alba - White Oak - RootMaker pruning pot 6 §5.25 $31.50 $5.00 $30.00 02 $1.00 $6.00
Quercus bicolor - Swamp White Oak - RootMaker pruning pot [ $4.95 $29.70 $5.00 $30.00 0.2 $1.00 $6.00
Quercus pa - Bur Oak - RootMaker pruning pot 6 $4.95 $29.70 $5.00 $30.00 0.2 $1.00 $6.00
Quercus muehlenbergii - Chinquapin Oak - 7 gallon 2 $73.50 $147.00 $14.00 $28.00 1 $5.00 $10.00
Quercus muchlenbergii - Chinquapin Oak - RootMaker pruning pot 6 $4.95 $29.70 $5.00 $30.00 0.2 $1.00 $6.00
Quercus rubra - Red Oak - 7 gallon 2 $73.50 $147.00 $14.00 $28.00 1 $5.00 $10.00
Quercus rubra - Red Oak - RootMaker pruning pot 6 $4.95 $29.70 $5.00 $30.00 0.2 $1.00 $6.00
Tilia americana - Basswood - 7 gallon 2 $73.50 $147.00 $14.00 $28.00 1 $5.00 $10.00
Shrubs
Cornus amomum - Silky Dogwood - gallon 3 $11.45 $34.35 $12.00 $36.00 0.5 $2.50 $7.50
Comus sericea - Red-osier Dogwood - gallon 3 $11.45 $3435 $12.00 $36.00 0.5 $2.50 $7.50
Corylus americana - American Hazelnut - gallon 3 $13.80 $41.40 $12.00 $36.00 0.5 $2.50 $7.50
Diervilla lonicera - Bush Honeysuckle - gallon 6 $11.45 $68.70 $12.00 $72.00 0.5 $2.50 $15.00
Sambucus racemosa - Red-Berried Elder - gallon 6 $11.45 $68.70 $12.00 $72.00 0.5 $2.50 $15.00
Viburnum lentago - Nannyberry - gallon 3 $11.45 $3435 $12.00 $36.00 05 $2.50 $7.50
78 $1,426.65 $708.00 $186.00

0.65 materia

20.0G labor
$6,720.65
$1,200.00 follow-up maintenance training




MERIDIAN
OWNS

\\_’—f*—-_

2025 Green Grants - Instructions to Applicants

Background:

Inspired by local interest in wetland protection, flood prevention, environmental education, and
climate sustainability, the Green Grant Program began in 2021. Applications are encouraged from
schools, nonprofit organizations, businesses, congregations, home owners associations, local clubs,
and other parties located in Meridian Township.

Eligible Projects Include:

e Native Plants, Shrubs, and Trees

¢ Buffer zones/natural vegetation buffers

¢ Rain gardens/bioswales/other green stormwater management infrastructure
e Green roofs/living walls

e QOutdoor classrooms/gathering spaces

e Natural shorelines

e Wetland preservation

e Signage (educational or place making)

e Stormwater management

e Composting facilities

e Renewable energy projects

e Educational projects that involve birds, bats, trees, native plants, and pollinators.
e Habitat protection and restoration

Please refer to www.greenschoolyards.org for additional project ideas.

Projects will be evaluated, in part, based on how well they align with the goals and objectives outlined in
Meridian Township’s 2023 Climate Sustainability Plan. Please review the 2023 Climate Sustainability
Plan to determine if your proposed project is in alignment. Ideally, applicants will speak to how well their
project aligns with the 2023 Climate Sustainability Plan in their application.

Evaluation of Applications

Applications are evaluated by the Green Grant Committee based on clarity, educational value,
ecological impact, and alignment with Meridian Township’s 2023 Climate Sustainability Plan. The
Green Grant Committee will recommend grant awards to the Environmental Commission for final
approval. Please provide information requested on the Green Grant Application Form.

Grant Award Amounts:

The Environmental Commission may award an amount that is less than the amount requested. On
your application, please provide the minimum award amount you will need to proceed with the
project. Applicants may also propose scaled back projects that correspond with lower grant award
amounts.


http://www.greenschoolyards.org/
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000

Grant awards in previous years have ranged from $300-$4,500.
Timelines:

March 30: Please submit application to the Green Grants Team at dpw@meridian.mi.us by Sunday,
March 30 at 5:00 pm. There is a white drop box in front of the Meridian Township Municipal Building
(5151 Marsh Road, Okemos) if an applicant would like to submit their application in a hard copy
format. There may be an opportunity for a second application window if there are uncommitted
funds after the first round of applications.

March 31-April 1: Green Grant Committee begins review.

April 2: Green Grant Committee presents recommendations to the Environmental Commission at
their regularly scheduled meeting for their approval. The Environmental Commission is scheduled to
meet at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Room of the Meridian Township Municipal Building (5151 Marsh
Road, Okemos).

April 7-11: Township staff present the awardees with the 2025 Green Grant Agreements. The
Township provides 50% payment upon receiving the signed grant agreement. The remaining grant
funds will be paid out once the project has been completed, a site inspection has been completed by
Township staff, and the Township receives an invoice for the remaining balance from the grant
recipient.

September 5: Grant recipients must provide a written progress report, including pictures and other
documents, that give a detailed but concise overview of the work that has been completed to date,
what work is outstanding (if any), and a project schedule for all remaining work (if any).

October 1: Township staff present to the Environmental Commission and Township Board on the
current status of all 2025 grant awards.

December 31: Project completion deadline (unless the grant recipient requests an extension in
writing and it is approved by the Township).
Questions

For questions, please contact the Meridian Township Department of Public Works &
Engineering at dpw@meridian.mi.us.

Please fill out the application on the next page.


mailto:dpw@meridian.mi.us
mailto:dpw@meridian.mi.us

MERIDIAN
TOWNSHIPAYA[/
e

2025 Green Grants Application

Applications are due by 5:00 pm on Sunday, March 30, 2025*
In previous years, grant awards ranged from $300 to $4,500

*Depending on the number of applications received during the initial grant application window from March 19-30,
the Township may hold a second grant application window in April 2025.

Date: 3/26/2025

Name of Organization:

Primary Contact: GSHOM Troop 30037
Phone: 517-214-6895

Cell: 517-214-6895

Email: 5ndreaworful@mac.com

A brief description of the project (i.e. location, scope of work, etc.):

Girl Scouts Heart of Michigan (GSHOM) Troop 30037 is a Cadette level troop of 8th grade studen

Does the project align with Meridian Township’s 2023 Climate Sustainability Plan? If so, please
explain:

Partnership with the school that will enhance educational opportunities.
Team leader(s) and team member(s):

Andrea Worful and Mary Lynn Martin (troop leaders), 4 Cadette Girl Scouts, HMS student and stz
Outreach plan to inform the community:

Pictures posted through social media, report/presentation to school/school groups and GSHOM
Expected materials and/or services required to complete the project:

General gardening items for clean up; lumber and fasteners to build transportable seating; transg
Project schedule (The grant agreement requires that projects be completed by December 31,
2025. The Township is willing to grant extensions if needed, but the applicant is required to
request extensions in writing):

March-May 2025

Total Project Budget:
$2000 total -- $1000 Green Grant + $1000 provided by troop funds raised from GS product programs

1


https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000
worful
Text Box
$2000 total -- $1000 Green Grant + $1000 provided by troop funds raised from GS product programs


Matching and/or in-kind contributions are encouraged. In-kind contribution are goods and/or
services/labor hours that are donated toward the project (e.g. plants donated, volunteer labor hours, etc.). If
proposing matching and/or in-kind contributions, please provide estimated amounts in your project budget.
In-kind contributions can be quantified by simply listing the estimated number of volunteer hours that will
be contributed through completion of the proposed project.

1000

Award Amount Applied for: $

How scalable is the project?
The Township may not have available funds to award the full requested amount. Please explain if the project
could be scaled back and list the minimum award amount your organization would need to proceed with a
project.

Troop could explore donation for materials but school has stated that both seating and sha

800

Minimum Award Amount Required to proceed with a scaled back project: $

Attachments: Please include a W-9 form. Other optional items might include an operation and/or
maintenance plan, pictures, rough designs/concept drawings, etc. Please list attachments:

1.


https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf

Green Grants

Background

The Green Grant Program was launched in 2021, inspired by local interest in wetland protection, flooding
prevention, outdoor education, climate action, native planting, and local action. Proposals are
encouraged from schools, businesses, congregations, neighborhood organizations, clubs, and others.

Project Examples

e Native Plants, Shrubs, and Trees e Energy-Related Projects

e Buffer Zones/Natural Vegetative Buffers e Educational projects that involve birds, bats,
¢ Rain Gardens/Bioswales trees, native plants, pollinators, art, signage,
e Green Roofs/Living Walls stormwater management, alternative energy,
e Outdoor Classrooms or Gathering Spaces food, composting, gardens, nature, and more!

e Natural Shorelines

Proposals
Proposals are evaluated by the Green Grant Committee based on educational value, ecological impact,

and clarity. The Committee recommends projects to the Environmental Commission for final approval.
Please provide information requested on the Green Grant Request for Proposal Form.

Timetable

Any Time Discuss ideas with your organization, business, association, school, and other.

Mar 15 Submit proposal Green Grants Team (c/o harvey@meridian.mi.us) Deadline may be
extended if dollars remain uncommitted.

March Green Grant Committee begins review.

Apr1 Grantee completes Green Grant Agreement Form (and W-9 if not already provided) 50%

payment in May. Balance processed after acceptable budgeted receipts are submitted.

Ongoing Share pictures, questions, and progress reports. Presentations invited to Environmental
Commission and/or Township Board.

Dec 30 Project completion deadline (unless extension granted)

More information
e https://news.jrn.msu.edu/2023/10/meridian-townships-environmental-grants-impact-local-
communities/
e www.epa.gov/green-infrastructure/what-green-infrastructure
e www.greenschoolyards.org
e Dbitly/meridiangreenmap

If you have questions, please contact the Meridian Township Environmental Programs Coordinator at
517.853.4466 or Harvey@meridian.mi.us. The Environmental Commission may make changes to this
project as needed. Version: 2/12/24



mailto:harvey@meridian.mi.us
https://news.jrn.msu.edu/2023/10/meridian-townships-environmental-grants-impact-local-communities/
https://news.jrn.msu.edu/2023/10/meridian-townships-environmental-grants-impact-local-communities/
http://www.epa.gov/green-infrastructure/what-green-infrastructure
http://www.greenschoolyards.org/
http://bit.ly/meridiangreenmap
mailto:Harvey@meridian.mi.us

Green Grant Request for Proposal

(Please use this form or create your own document)

Mid-Michigan Land Conservancy  03/14/2024

1. Name of Organization:

2. Contact Information (email and address)

executivedirectormmlc@gmail.com P.O. Box 154 Okemos, M| 48805-0154

3. Abrief description of project

MMLC has worked with Judy Linn to plant trees in Meridian Township and this grant request is fo

4. Team leader(s) and team members
Jared Harmon, Judy Linn
5. Outreach plan to inform the community

Informal meetings with community members to select tree locations will be the primary method fc

6. Expected materials and/or services needed

Trees valued at approximately $400 per 2" caliper

7. Project schedule (approximate)

Project would conclude no later than May 1, 2026

8. Project budget (matching / in-kind contributions are encouraged)
$5,200. Match from MMLC Executive Director is valued at $31 an hour for the project

9. Attachments: Please include alW-9 form|(unless already provided). Other optional items might
include an operation and/or maintenance plan, pictures, rough designs/concept drawings, etc.
Please list attachments:

W9


https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf

MERIDIAN
OWNS

\\_’—f*—-_

2025 Green Grants - Instructions to Applicants

Background:

Inspired by local interest in wetland protection, flood prevention, environmental education, and
climate sustainability, the Green Grant Program began in 2021. Applications are encouraged from
schools, nonprofit organizations, businesses, congregations, home owners associations, local clubs,
and other parties located in Meridian Township.

Eligible Projects Include:

e Native Plants, Shrubs, and Trees

¢ Buffer zones/natural vegetation buffers

¢ Rain gardens/bioswales/other green stormwater management infrastructure
e Green roofs/living walls

e QOutdoor classrooms/gathering spaces

e Natural shorelines

e Wetland preservation

e Signage (educational or place making)

e Stormwater management

e Composting facilities

e Renewable energy projects

e Educational projects that involve birds, bats, trees, native plants, and pollinators.
e Habitat protection and restoration

Please refer to www.greenschoolyards.org for additional project ideas.

Projects will be evaluated, in part, based on how well they align with the goals and objectives outlined in
Meridian Township’s 2023 Climate Sustainability Plan. Please review the 2023 Climate Sustainability
Plan to determine if your proposed project is in alignment. Ideally, applicants will speak to how well their
project aligns with the 2023 Climate Sustainability Plan in their application.

Evaluation of Applications

Applications are evaluated by the Green Grant Committee based on clarity, educational value,
ecological impact, and alignment with Meridian Township’s 2023 Climate Sustainability Plan. The
Green Grant Committee will recommend grant awards to the Environmental Commission for final
approval. Please provide information requested on the Green Grant Application Form.

Grant Award Amounts:

The Environmental Commission may award an amount that is less than the amount requested. On
your application, please provide the minimum award amount you will need to proceed with the
project. Applicants may also propose scaled back projects that correspond with lower grant award
amounts.


http://www.greenschoolyards.org/
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000

Grant awards in previous years have ranged from $300-$4,500.
Timelines:

March 30: Please submit application to the Green Grants Team at dpw@meridian.mi.us by Sunday,
March 30 at 5:00 pm. There is a white drop box in front of the Meridian Township Municipal Building
(5151 Marsh Road, Okemos) if an applicant would like to submit their application in a hard copy
format. There may be an opportunity for a second application window if there are uncommitted
funds after the first round of applications.

March 31-April 1: Green Grant Committee begins review.

April 2: Green Grant Committee presents recommendations to the Environmental Commission at
their regularly scheduled meeting for their approval. The Environmental Commission is scheduled to
meet at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Room of the Meridian Township Municipal Building (5151 Marsh
Road, Okemos).

April 7-11: Township staff present the awardees with the 2025 Green Grant Agreements. The
Township provides 50% payment upon receiving the signed grant agreement. The remaining grant
funds will be paid out once the project has been completed, a site inspection has been completed by
Township staff, and the Township receives an invoice for the remaining balance from the grant
recipient.

September 5: Grant recipients must provide a written progress report, including pictures and other
documents, that give a detailed but concise overview of the work that has been completed to date,
what work is outstanding (if any), and a project schedule for all remaining work (if any).

October 1: Township staff present to the Environmental Commission and Township Board on the
current status of all 2025 grant awards.

December 31: Project completion deadline (unless the grant recipient requests an extension in
writing and it is approved by the Township).
Questions

For questions, please contact the Meridian Township Department of Public Works &
Engineering at dpw@meridian.mi.us.

Please fill out the application on the next page.


mailto:dpw@meridian.mi.us
mailto:dpw@meridian.mi.us

MERIDIAN
TOWNSHIPAYA[/
e

2025 Green Grants Application

Applications are due by 5:00 pm on Sunday, March 30, 2025*
In previous years, grant awards ranged from $300 to $4,500

*Depending on the number of applications received during the initial grant application window from March 19-30,
the Township may hold a second grant application window in April 2025.

Date: 3-26-2025

Name of Organization: Montessori Radmoor Schoo

Primary Contact: Davis Coye
Phone: 517-351-3655
Cell: 517-763-6306

Email: gcoye@radmoor.org

A brief description of the project (i.e. location, scope of work, etc.):

We would like to purchase a solar powered pond pump for our greenhouse and native trees, shrut

Does the project align with Meridian Township’s 2023 Climate Sustainability Plan? If so, please
explain:

Solar power and the installation of native plants aligns perfectly with Meridian Township's Climate
Team leader(s) and team member(s):

Davis Coye, Jackie Artuso, Trish Murphy, and Christine Russell
Outreach plan to inform the community:

Radmoor will share pictures and information through social media, email, and shared pictures wit
Expected materials and/or services required to complete the project:

Solar-powered pond pump, a diverse variety of native trees, shrubs, and perennials. If funds allo\
Project schedule (The grant agreement requires that projects be completed by December 31,
2025. The Township is willing to grant extensions if needed, but the applicant is required to

request extensions in writing):

All native plants will be purchased and installed throughout the summer, all plants installations cot

Total Project Budget:


https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000

Matching and/or in-kind contributions are encouraged. In-kind contribution are goods and/or
services/labor hours that are donated toward the project (e.g. plants donated, volunteer labor hours, etc.). If
proposing matching and/or in-kind contributions, please provide estimated amounts in your project budget.
In-kind contributions can be quantified by simply listing the estimated number of volunteer hours that will
be contributed through completion of the proposed project.

3950

Award Amount Applied for: $

How scalable is the project?
The Township may not have available funds to award the full requested amount. Please explain if the project
could be scaled back and list the minimum award amount your organization would need to proceed with a
project.

If needed, we can remove the $300 of signage from the greenhouse pond portion and remc

2000

Minimum Award Amount Required to proceed with a scaled back project: $

Attachments: Please include a W-9 form. Other optional items might include an operation and/or
maintenance plan, pictures, rough designs/concept drawings, etc. Please list attachments:

1.

Attached is a more detailed proposal with links and description


https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf

5 - maze garden: musclewood, spicebush, ferns, sedge (5 each shrubs, 12-16 ferns/sedge)

Areas of new g - pee garden: juniper, red osier dogwood, bur oak (10+ juniper & dogwood, 3 oak)

native 7 - bat garden: native ferns, dogwood (3-5 shrubs, 12 ferns) -
plantings 8,11 - elem grounds: muscle wood, spicebush, arborvitae (3-5 each) e p e /\
planned 10 - wetland garden: river birch, sycamore (3-5 each) @R 7 s e = X

GROUP

L 844.813.2949
Www.pEagroup.com

12 - native agriculture: wild rice

19 - crossover garden: river birch, paper birch, red osier dogwood

arborvitae, black gum, aspen, musclewood, spicebush, ferns, sedge (3-5 each trees/shrubs, 12-16 ferns/sedge)
MT. HOPE ROAD

VALVE & POST INDICATOR VALVE
BOX & SHUTORE

———— EX. SANITARY SEWER

Cx. SANITARY

Invasive species
planned for removal

ANGUT & MANHOLF

P.O.C.
NORTH 1/4
CORNER

- buckthorn T, now N V_ le\’|ABLE WIDTH—~PUBLIC sy apmpncoms snmmmmssmemmron s il \/\ﬁe
' NBUCAE'STIE(RAM)  227.50'(REM) oon | NBe®45'57"E(RaM) 455.00%(R) 454.E5'(M) NoRTHERST -@ f: "”r::vs
puih hdoneysuckle ‘ R —e : — Sz o Ol SRS
- jetbea fhem e = f ; “ e G
tree of heaven } ngzé“ ! Sﬁn‘ S e I L“;‘:’g, ,béﬁ EX. SPOT ELEVATION
- 1 i IEN RADMOOR EX. CONTQUR
| g ® \ SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE S
£ = To: ) ) L
} g 1 2 é’ The Darl Bank, its successes and/or assigns as their interest my appear : ﬁ ST NORTH
20 garden pIOtS ‘ : g‘ greenspace Transnation Title Agency BR -
™ o [} 25 50 100
’ == o~
¥ reenspaceg . N
18 mana ed for | 2 g work g p z [ This is to cerify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in URED  CALCULATED SCALE: 1" =50
g | E wamrs gy, Soneey y & pee N » yard 2| = = accordance with the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALT AINSPS Land Title
ff d d |e ottt 3 il s ke Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALT A and NSPS. The fieldwork was completed on niom
staft and student ‘ ¥ g E i = g August 08, 2022, eganboon._
usage —— 3 ] 6| — g e
| g g ee . .um T 2 g : 08/22/2022
| & z garden | e g I Christopher T. Eeland, P.S. Date:
/’TBS‘EZSFE(R T NB93212E(R) // gy :Eé Michigan Professional Surveyor No. 4001049106
\ roms iz a0 06(R) i /( 5 agi Agent for PEA Group
\ maze Ty i) gi 7
8 3
\ 5 garden e gl :
| ] ; S
e _ — i SCHEDULE B-ll (EXCEPTIONS)
oo sox o VR R = ST Transnation Title Agency
4: e . e \} Commitment No.: 387 164LANS
ffffff = b - i < Property Address: 2745 E. Mount Hope Ave., Okemos, Michigan 48864
EASTWAY DRIVE N§55'41"E(Rm) 7.58'(R;ipe ce - = wetland Commitment Date: May 16, 2022
=t % et ONTSSORI
60 FT. WIDE-PUBLIC | Cga den 9 ; gardeﬂx ot Items 1 through 11, and 17 are standard title exceptions
elem s E B} CLIENT
e = f ] / 12. Rights, if any, of the United States government, the State of Michigan, any other governmental entity, riparian owners, the MONTESSORI
% lem 1 . \\ = public or private persons existing in or with respect to the present and past bed, banks, bottomland and waters of Herron RADMOOR
o e s e o ﬁoods FLAY = = Creek Drain, East Gate Drain and Indian Lakes Drain. SMCHP;?JI;
= O‘ﬁﬂ o s [PER REVIEW OF INGHAM COUNTY DRAIN COMMISSION MAPS AVAILABE AT INGHAMDRAINS.ORG, SAID DRAINS ERoe werhchs st
- o ‘ €\ e ARE NOT LOCATED ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.]
<
g ANG 18T » -
181 S :; = marsh 20 13. Right of Way vested in Consumers Power Company by instrument recorded in Liber 56 of Miscellaneous Records, Page 557
_ e [UNABLE TO DETERMINE, LANDS DESCRIBED IN DOCUMENT INCLUDES SUBJECT PROPERTY BUT DOCUMENT
e % MICHIGAN WONTSSORI — DOES NOT INCLUDE A PLOTTABLE ROUTE & COURSE DESCRIPTION OR MAP AND IS NOT SHOWN HEREON.] PROJECT TITLE
TAx B -0 0P 7o 188-004 v/ 1-STRRY-SLOCK. BALDEG cesmvATIN MONTESSORI
ot £ e - 14, Grant of Easement as recorded in Liber 1392, Page 1232. RADgOOR
7 EY
[AS SHOWN ON SURVEY MAP.] SCHOOL
o @ g SAO PE ROAD
B ’ Fr ‘?g Box ey
S w‘%_ : v,‘%'i-ﬁgﬁc iy . 15. Grant of Easement as recorded in Liber 1392, Page 1228.
8 " o 4 [AS SHOWN ON SURVEY MAP ]
EASTGATE z @ Ch
Sk e 5 @p'; 16. Grant of Easement as recorded in Liber 1392, Page 1238,
2 - — : 16 ] f & [AS SHOWN ON SURVEY MAP.] REVISIONS
i : . primary ssover P
2 ; Ele &
& A
S
2 TPy g mycology garden & SCHEDULE C - PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
: ™ Mj-:ﬂ-!m i garde “QQ-@ Transnation Title Agency
8 19 &0 Commitment No.: 387184LANS
g ¥ natural 5 Property Address: 2745 E. Mount Hope Ave., Okemoes, Michigan 48864
g atura 18 Commitment Date: May 18, 2022
g area
E&' = N82°°3'49"W(R Commencing at the North 1/4 corner of Section 29; thence North 89 degrees 46 minutes 57 seconds East along the North Section
3 | oD Ty ) 33013'R) 430 s line 227.5 feet to the point of beginning; thence North 88 degrees 46 minutes 57 seconds East along said North line 455 feet; TR s
£ IR, SounN & SHM N RS o thence South parallel with the East line of Eastgate Subdivision 549.93 feet; thence South 45 degrees West 350 feet; thence North August0s 2022
: [ S o0 R 82 degrees 08 minutes 48 seconds West 439.13 feet to a point on the East line of Eastgate Subdivision; thence North along the e
% | 111 4 T East line of said Subdivision 384.99 feet; thence North 89 degrees 55 minutes 41 seconds East 227.58 feet, thence North 00 ALTA/NSPS
g / — . - S " s degrees 00 minutes 46 seconds West 350.41 feet to the point of beginning, Section 29, Town 4 North, Range 1 West, Meridian LAND TITLE
§ I mweesams A e ~ e [, == Township, Ingham County, Michigan. SURVEY
g (L30, P.40 & 41) - TAX é’ﬁﬁa‘,‘fu“!‘ﬁvm |
G
§ SURVEYORS NOTES :
é A. Base of Bearings the North line of Section 29, Town 04 North, Range 01 West Ingham County, Michigan. PEA JOE NG e
g B. There we no cbservable evidence of cemeteries, burial grounds, or individual grave sites on the subject property. ;\M ‘Si
g DES. XX
g DRAWING NUMBER
£
i 1 OF 1



bee
garden

bat
garden

peace
garden

native
agriculture

FEW
garden

mycology
garden

crossover
garden

wetland
garden

maze
garden

work
yard

greenspace

greenspace

elem
woods

natural
area

marsh

Highlight

courtyard

20 garden plots,
18 managed for
staff and student 
usage

toddler

primary

elem

sign

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Highlight

Highlight

Invasive species
planned for removal
- buckthorn
- bush honeysuckle
- jetbead
- tree of heaven

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Areas of new
native
plantings
planned

5 - maze garden: musclewood, spicebush, ferns, sedge (5 each shrubs, 12-16 ferns/sedge)
6 - bee garden: juniper, red osier dogwood, bur oak (10+ juniper & dogwood, 3 oak)
7 - bat garden: native ferns, dogwood (3-5 shrubs, 12 ferns)
8,11 - elem grounds: muscle wood, spicebush, arborvitae (3-5 each)
10 - wetland garden: river birch, sycamore (3-5 each)
12 - native agriculture: wild rice
19 - crossover garden: river birch, paper birch, red osier dogwood
arborvitae, black gum, aspen, musclewood, spicebush, ferns, sedge (3-5 each trees/shrubs, 12-16 ferns/sedge)

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight

Highlight


GREEN GRANT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 2025

Date: 03/24/2025
Name of Organization: Pine Creek Il (PCll) of Haslett Condo Association
Primary Contact:

Chris Knapp

517-256-6780

knappck@gmail.com
Brief Description: The project is removal of invasive plants from two primary areas
on the PCIl property as listed in the attachment below. The area is near a small lake
and designated wetlands. The removal work will be done by Association co-owners.
The grant request is for $1,000.00 to pay for brush delivery to the Reclaimed by
Design site at 5976 E. Lake Drive in Haslett.
Does the project align with Meridian Township’s 2023 Climate Sustainability
Plan? This project goals are the removal of plants/trees that are invasive in
Meridian Township and maintaining natural areas with reduced use of chemicals.
Team Leaders/Members: The Association Landscape Committee named below
will be leading the work: Chris Knapp, Doug Holem, Sheldon Knoespel, Helen
Reinhart, and Gloria Stragier.
Outreach Plan to Inform the Community: The result of this work will be education
in the identification and proper removal of invasive species. Also, creation of co-
owner’s interest in maintaining natural areas and reducing use of chemicals.
Another lesson will be to find out what happens to an area where a large amount of
invasives have been removed. What ends up growing back in.
In-service sessions were held prior to last year’s project with Vern Stephens (native
plant expert) and Emma Campbell (Meridian Township Land Stewardship
Coordinator). Additionally, articles on the reason invasive species are detrimental
to the environment and identification of invasive species particular to our area have
run in the Association newsletter.
Expected materials and/or services needed: The group has a utility trailer and
equipment such as hedge trimmers and chainsaws to complete the work.
Association Co-owners will cut, haul, and load the brush and materials into the
trailer which contains 20-25 cubic yards. Lastyear every one of the 20 loads
expected was hauled.
Project Schedule: Work will be completed in summer and fall 2025.

. Total Project Budget: The Association is bringing labor and equipment to the

project. Lastyear close to 25% of the co-owners participated at some point. The
use of the trailer and a car to take the loads to the dump site which is approximately


mailto:knappck@gmail.com

4 miles. Lastyear it was calculated that over 100 hours of labor were put in for 20
loads. At $20/hr for 100 hours = $2,000.00 just in labor alone.
11. Award Amount Applied for: $1,000.00

12. How Scalable is the project: A minimum of $300.00 would still help move the
project forward.

13. Attachments: Reclaimed by Design published cost, Map of affected areas.



1. Brief Description: The objective is to remove invasive plants from two primary areas
on the PCII property as listed below. The removal work will be done by Association
co-owners. The grant request is for $1,000.00 to pay for brush delivery to the
Reclaimed by Design site at 5976 E. Lake Drive in Haslett.

Area 1: This area is not mowed by the condo association but, over the years, has
been an area in which some residents planted extra perennials, etc. However,
invasive plants have taken over. Buckthorn, Autumn Olive, Ornamental Pear, and
many vines make up the biggest percentage of the invasives we want to remove.
Our ultimate goal is to create a pollinator garden in this area. That idea has
generated much interest and support among the Association co-owners. This will
be a multi-year project, but first the invasives need to be controlled.

Area 2: The other area is on the southwest corner of the property. This areais
completely overgrown with Buckthorn, Eurasian Honeysuckle, Poison Ivy, and
Oriental Bittersweet. The area is next to a small lake which does not belong to PCII
butis just outside of the map range. The area on the Association side of the lake is
designated wetlands. Care will need to be taken in removing the invasive species.
In the past and in the future, all removals are being done by hand pulling.



Pine Creek I1

2

APRIL 2023
AQen \
LMoo g
Timm Bennett
7
Lange 1866
Litos/ Kurt/Fowler 2> 1872
_.m.Bnm:m 1934/ Kessler/ | | Ellis/ =2
Chick J Voorheis
1944/ 1930 Trosty ic Smith/ O
1938 3
1926/ 1918/ | | Coneleton 1878 &.,/w
1922 1914 - Jourden - 1863/
1947/ || Holem/ oo B seas & 1867
1950 || Knapp 96 | | KJones Petty/ C [y .
/lohnson Reinhart Clausen/Reid
kL 1877
ree
Cre ey, 1900/ 1892/ :
o Shinn/Bean
, 1937/ 1929/ 1896 1888 1881/
. 7 |1043 1933 | f1eay | [ 11909/ 1883
|~ |Pifer/ Smith/ S Leighton/Flanders
_/ |Guina Moraniec || Ferguson/ _,H_Bm_m_.,x, 1901/ 1885/
\ | b s aczulski 1903 1887
. 1889/ Lilirose/Applegate
Allen/ 1897/ 1893/ 1891
Leohard 1899 1895
Knoespel/
va Fulk/ D Jones/ Franchini
/.~ " [|MVoorheis | | Keene




Reclaimed by Design Published Cost 2025

DI Entmnt [ Family [JFood [JGene [JHealth [JHome [JMoney [JRef [(Jshop [JTravel [T gcal IFOb W cPM Readeo @ Amz G Ggl [ Stwrih [J BBub

RECLAIMED BY DESIGN Home Recycle Waste Rental Consult Contact

Yard Waste

e Leaves, brush, sticks, logs, grass,
shrubs, decomposable bags

* $3.00 per paper bag or 30 gallon bin
s $5.00 per 64 gallon toter
¢ $10.00 per 96 gallon toter

« $20.00 per cu. yd » Not accepted: Dirt, weed block film, or
« $30.00 per truckbed any unnatural, treated wood

* $50.00 per utility trailer (8'x4'x2")

» $90.00 per large trailer (10'x6'x2")

¢ $150.00 dump trailer (14'x7'x2")




MERIDIAN
OWNS

\\_’—f*—-_

2025 Green Grants - Instructions to Applicants

Background:

Inspired by local interest in wetland protection, flood prevention, environmental education, and
climate sustainability, the Green Grant Program began in 2021. Applications are encouraged from
schools, nonprofit organizations, businesses, congregations, home owners associations, local clubs,
and other parties located in Meridian Township.

Eligible Projects Include:

e Native Plants, Shrubs, and Trees

¢ Buffer zones/natural vegetation buffers

¢ Rain gardens/bioswales/other green stormwater management infrastructure
e Green roofs/living walls

e QOutdoor classrooms/gathering spaces

e Natural shorelines

e Wetland preservation

e Signage (educational or place making)

e Stormwater management

e Composting facilities

e Renewable energy projects

e Educational projects that involve birds, bats, trees, native plants, and pollinators.
e Habitat protection and restoration

Please refer to www.greenschoolyards.org for additional project ideas.

Projects will be evaluated, in part, based on how well they align with the goals and objectives outlined in
Meridian Township’s 2023 Climate Sustainability Plan. Please review the 2023 Climate Sustainability
Plan to determine if your proposed project is in alignment. Ideally, applicants will speak to how well their
project aligns with the 2023 Climate Sustainability Plan in their application.

Evaluation of Applications

Applications are evaluated by the Green Grant Committee based on clarity, educational value,
ecological impact, and alignment with Meridian Township’s 2023 Climate Sustainability Plan. The
Green Grant Committee will recommend grant awards to the Environmental Commission for final
approval. Please provide information requested on the Green Grant Application Form.

Grant Award Amounts:

The Environmental Commission may award an amount that is less than the amount requested. On
your application, please provide the minimum award amount you will need to proceed with the
project. Applicants may also propose scaled back projects that correspond with lower grant award
amounts.


http://www.greenschoolyards.org/
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000

Grant awards in previous years have ranged from $300-$4,500.
Timelines:

March 30: Please submit application to the Green Grants Team at dpw@meridian.mi.us by Sunday,
March 30 at 5:00 pm. There is a white drop box in front of the Meridian Township Municipal Building
(5151 Marsh Road, Okemos) if an applicant would like to submit their application in a hard copy
format. There may be an opportunity for a second application window if there are uncommitted
funds after the first round of applications.

March 31-April 1: Green Grant Committee begins review.

April 2: Green Grant Committee presents recommendations to the Environmental Commission at
their regularly scheduled meeting for their approval. The Environmental Commission is scheduled to
meet at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Room of the Meridian Township Municipal Building (5151 Marsh
Road, Okemos).

April 7-11: Township staff present the awardees with the 2025 Green Grant Agreements. The
Township provides 50% payment upon receiving the signed grant agreement. The remaining grant
funds will be paid out once the project has been completed, a site inspection has been completed by
Township staff, and the Township receives an invoice for the remaining balance from the grant
recipient.

September 5: Grant recipients must provide a written progress report, including pictures and other
documents, that give a detailed but concise overview of the work that has been completed to date,
what work is outstanding (if any), and a project schedule for all remaining work (if any).

October 1: Township staff present to the Environmental Commission and Township Board on the
current status of all 2025 grant awards.

December 31: Project completion deadline (unless the grant recipient requests an extension in
writing and it is approved by the Township).
Questions

For questions, please contact the Meridian Township Department of Public Works &
Engineering at dpw@meridian.mi.us.

Please fill out the application on the next page.


mailto:dpw@meridian.mi.us
mailto:dpw@meridian.mi.us

MERIDIAN
TOWNSHIPAYA[/
e

2025 Green Grants Application

Applications are due by 5:00 pm on Sunday, March 30, 2025*
In previous years, grant awards ranged from $300 to $4,500

*Depending on the number of applications received during the initial grant application window from March 19-30,
the Township may hold a second grant application window in April 2025.

Date: March 28, 2025

Primary Contact: Krista Beyer
Phone: 517 827-9613
Cell: 517 290-0630

Email: kbeyer@lansingymca.org

A brief description of the project (i.e. location, scope of work, etc.):

Y has long embraced the importance of outdoor education with two outdoor nature camps. We int

Does the project align with Meridian Township’s 2023 Climate Sustainability Plan? If so, please
explain:

The natural classroom aligns with Meridian Townships Climate Sustainability Plam in the following
Team leader(s) and team member(s):

Team leaders from the Y involved in the project are our Director Krista Beyer, our assistant Stept
Outreach plan to inform the community:

Once the project is completed the Y will highlight the work to the community. We will of course dr
Expected materials and/or services required to complete the project:

The Y will utilize some of its existing lumber which will be gathered from our Camp PaWaPi locat
Project schedule (The grant agreement requires that projects be completed by December 31,
2025. The Township is willing to grant extensions if needed, but the applicant is required to
request extensions in writing):

The project will begin in April after grantees are notified. Once the first payment is received the wc

Total Project Budget:


https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/28084/638459416817500000

Matching and/or in-kind contributions are encouraged. In-kind contribution are goods and/or
services/labor hours that are donated toward the project (e.g. plants donated, volunteer labor hours, etc.). If
proposing matching and/or in-kind contributions, please provide estimated amounts in your project budget.
In-kind contributions can be quantified by simply listing the estimated number of volunteer hours that will
be contributed through completion of the proposed project.

; $2,607

Award Amount Applied for:

How scalable is the project?
The Township may not have available funds to award the full requested amount. Please explain if the project
could be scaled back and list the minimum award amount your organization would need to proceed with a
project.

The total budget is $3,807 including the inkind of $1,200. We are asking for $2,607 for the

1,480

Minimum Award Amount Required to proceed with a scaled back project: $

Attachments: Please include a W-9 form. Other optional items might include an operation and/or
maintenance plan, pictures, rough designs/concept drawings, etc. Please list attachments:

1.

The scaled back version does not include seats for the classroom. Attachments include W9, Goor


https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification
Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/FormW3 for instructions and the latest information.
1 Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

Young Mens Christian Association of Lansing

2 Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above

YMCA of Lansing

3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the | 4 Exemptions (codes apply only to
following seven boxes. certain entities, not individuals; see
instructions on page 3):

Form W-9

(Rev. October 2018)

Give Form to the
requester. Do not
send to the IRS.

D Individual/sole proprietor or C Corporation D S Carparation D Partnership D Trust/estate

single-member LLC Exempt payee code (if any)

|:| Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership) >

Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner. Do not check Exemption from FATCA reporting
LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is de (if

another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that, code (if any)
is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner.

D Other (see instructions) >
5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.
900 Long Bivd
6 City, state, and ZIP code

Lansing, MI 48911

7 List account number(s) here (optional)

Print or type.
See Specific Instructions on page 3.

{Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)

Requester's name and address (optional)

m Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part |, later. For other - -
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a
TIN, later. or
Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and | Employer identification number |
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.

Part 1l Certification

Under penalties of perjury, | certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or | am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and

2. | am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) | am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) | have not been notified by the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) that | am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that | am
no longer subject to backup withholding; and

3. 1am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and
4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that | am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid,
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments
other than interest and divide?c\is, ou are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part Il, later.

e Lo (AT e 129520002

[ Social security number

3!18(-11[3({5]9|5|7]6

A" A\~ A
General | nStrUCtionS U f-urligrsr)n 1098-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise * Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross

noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormWa.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other
amount reportable on an information retumn. Examples of information
returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

e Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

proceeds)

e Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other
transactions by brokers)

* Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)

* Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)
* Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest),
1098-T (tuition)

e Form 1099-C (canceled debt)

* Form 1098-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident
alien), to provide your correct TIN.

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding,
later.

Cat. No. 10231X

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018)


















m

DIAN ?

NSHI Py
To: Environmental Commission

8.B

From: Dan Opsommer, Deputy Township Manager
Director of Public Works and Engineering

Date: March 28,2025

Re: 2024 Climate Sustainability Funds

In the 2024 Township Budget, the Township Board allocated $30,000 in funding for climate
sustainability purposes. This was the first such appropriation in a Township Budget. There was no
specific project that this funding was appropriated for. Rather, it was essentially the Township
Board expressing a desire for Township staff and the Environmental Commission to brainstorm
projects that are focused on climate sustainability.

In 2024, the Township invested $2,204.58 of the Climate Sustainability Funds to help support the
Gleaning Project at the Farmer’s Market. This was to acquire a table, canopy and other resources
for the Gleaning Project. The Township also invested $2,873 for wetland education signage.

Having expended $5,077.58 of the available $30,000, we currently have $24,922.42 remaining in
Climate Sustainability funds.

The purpose of this agenda item is to begin discussions on how to invest the remaining 2024
Climate Sustainability funds. Commissioners should feel free to bring forward ideas that they may
have in mind. We can also begin discussion on what process we would like to establish for
selecting project/s.

Township staff have a project that we would like to offer up for your consideration. Even if this
project is not something that the Environmental Commission wishes to pursue, we thought this
would help get the Commissioners thinking about prospective projects:

Conceptual Marshall Park East Bioswale Project: I want to preface this conceptual project by
stating that we have not formally approached the Township Park Commission to solicit their input
yet. If the Environmental Commission has an interest in pursuing this project, we will make that
our first step in the process. Deputy Manager Opsommer has had an initial preliminary discussion
re: this conceptual project with Parks Director Courtney Wisinski.

The east end of Marshall Park and the surrounding area suffers from significant flooding during
the spring thaw and major storm events. This stormwater floods Columbia St, Marshall Park,
surrounding private property, etc.

The Township would like to help address these flooding issues as we have land (i.e. Marshall Park)
that make it possible for us to contribute toward the solution. I want to be clear that the flooding
extends beyond the park property, so we cannot address all of the flooding issues on the park
property. However, we likely can help alleviate some of the flooding.

Lo . . . . — A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime commumm

meridian.mi.us



Memo to Environmental Commission
March 28,2025
Re: 2024 Climate Sustainability Funds

Conceptually, Township staff believe it could possibly be viable to construct bioswales (or a similar
alternative) along the east property line of Marshall Park and in the southeast corner of Marshall
Park to properly manage stormwater, treat it, and outlet it through the existing storm drains at the
Columbia St/Lake St intersection.

The bioswale would also serve to help beautify the east end and/or southeast corner of the park.
There is high ground water in this area, so it is possible that a bioswale may not be viable. This will
require additional investigation, which we would have our engineering firm assist us with.

This project would likely exceed the Climate Sustainability funding we have available. However,
the Township could cover the remaining cost with the Local Road Program as we are looking to
resurface the streets in this neighborhood in the future, but we would like to improve the existing
drainage issues in this area before doing so. The Township would ordinarily simply perform ditch
cleanout to create detention areas for a Local Road Program project. However, if the climate
sustainability funds were also put forth to help support this project, we could pursue bioswales or
a similar alternative to naturally filter/treat the stormwater.

Conceptually, the project area could be:

We would not necessarily use this entire area. That would be dependent upon Park Commission
and Park Department input, community input, stormwater runoff calculations, and other factors.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



Memo to Environmental Commission
March 28,2025
Re: 2024 Climate Sustainability Funds

The Township has an existing perforated drain tile in the southeast corner of Marshall Park, but it
is not sufficient to handle the spring thaw or severe storm events.

For those who may be unfamiliar with bioswales, here are two conceptual designs:

GUTLETCONTROL
STRUCTURE PROVIDES NEGETATION

PLANTING SOIL MEDIUM

T APPED
1N BIOINFILTRATION DESIGN o STONE STORAGE

UNCOMPACTED LEVEL
SUBGRADE

Maximum
slope ——

'II\_AL

=4

UNDERDRAIN
CLEAN

Trench with a 4-inch
perforated pipe

WATER INFILTRATES INTO SUBGRADE
IN BIDINFILTRATION DESIGN

The benefits of a bioswale on water quality include:

e Protects local waterways from stormwater pollutants

e Creates habitat for wildlife, including birds and butterflies,

¢ Reduces non-point pollution by filtering stormwater

¢ Reduces standing water (puddles) that can attract mosquitoes

e Creates colorful gardens with a variety of flowers and plants year round
e Requires low maintenance after establishment

Please click here for additional information regarding the benefits of bioswales from MSU
Extension.

We offer this up as a prospective project that the Environmental Commission might wish to
pursue. If the Commission wishes to explore this project further, we would recommend the
following next steps:

1. Obtaining initial input from the Township Park Commission and Park Department staff
2. An alternative analysis and rough cost estimates for how to help alleviate the flooding

Again, the purpose of this agenda item is to begin discussions on how to invest the remaining 2024
Climate Sustainability funds. Commissioners should feel free to bring forward ideas that they may
have in mind. We can also begin discussion on what process we would like to establish for
selecting project/s.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us


https://www.canr.msu.edu/news/bioswales_can_improve_water_quality_resources#:%7E:text=The%20benefits%20of%20a%20bioswale,point%20pollution%20by%20filtering%20stormwater
https://www.canr.msu.edu/news/bioswales_can_improve_water_quality_resources#:%7E:text=The%20benefits%20of%20a%20bioswale,point%20pollution%20by%20filtering%20stormwater

Memo to Environmental Commission
March 28,2025
Re: 2024 Climate Sustainability Funds

To provide greater context regarding the flooding in this low lying area near the Columbia
St and Lake St intersection, here are some photos that were recently taken this spring:

— A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.

meridian.mi.us



Memo to Environmental Commission
March 28,2025
Re: 2024 Climate Sustainability Funds

A PRIME COMMUNITY
meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Memo to Environmental Commission
March 28,2025
Re: 2024 Climate Sustainability Funds

A PRIME COMMUNITY
meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



	1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
	2. ROLL CALL
	Deputy Manager Opsommer called the roll of the Commission.
	3. PRESENTATION
	None
	4. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS
	5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	9. CITIZENS ADDRESS AGENDA ITEMS AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS
	Trustee Lentz shared that the Township Board approved a resolution in support of another grant that the Township is pursuing. The grant application is to secure funding to prospectively construct a trailhead for the MSU to Lake Lansing Trail at 5280 O...
	Commissioner Batten shared that he would be presenting at the Michigan Science Teacher Association’s event on Friday.
	Chair McConnell shared an excerpt of an email he sent to the Township Supervisor as he reflected on all of the positive from the Joint Meeting of the Township’s Board and Commissions.
	11. Approval of the Minutes

	12. ADJOURNMENT
	2025 Green Grant Application Fillable
	2025 Green Grant Application Fillable
	2025 Green Grant Application Fillable

	Date: 3/26/2025
	Name of Organization: 
	Primary Contact: GSHOM Troop 30037
	Phone Number: 517-214-6895
	Cell Phone Number: 517-214-6895
	Email: andreaworful@mac.com
	Project Description: Girl Scouts Heart of Michigan (GSHOM) Troop 30037 is a Cadette level troop of 8th grade students attending Haslett Middle School (HMS). The outdoor classroom at HMS is in need of clean up, more usable seating, and the addition of something to provide shade to make it more usable for the school. Troop 30037 is collaborating with administrators, teachers, student counsel members and members of the conservation club to make improvements to this space so it is more functional for the school.
	Project Alignment Explanation: Partnership with the school that will enhance educational opportunities.
	Team Leader and Members: Andrea Worful and Mary Lynn Martin (troop leaders), 4 Cadette Girl Scouts, HMS student and staff volunteers
	Outreach Plan: Pictures posted through social media, report/presentation to school/school groups and GSHOM
	Expected Materials/Services: General gardening items for clean up; lumber and fasteners to build transportable seating; transportable shade structure and supports
	Project Schedule: March-May 2025
	Award Amount Applied: 1000
	Project Scalability: Troop could explore donation for materials but school has stated that both seating and shade are important to make more use of the space; no cost is associate with the clean up efforts
	Minimum Award Amount Required: 800
	Attachments List: W-9
	Contact Information: executivedirectormmlc@gmail.com P.O. Box 154 Okemos, MI 48805-0154
	Brief Description of the Project: MMLC has worked with Judy Linn to plant trees in Meridian Township and this grant request is for additional trees. MMLC is assisting in planting 650 trees in the community in 2025 and this grant would build off of previous efforts in Meridian Township 
	Team Leader(s): Jared Harmon, Judy Linn
	Materials or Services Needed: Trees valued at approximately $400 per 2" caliper 
	Timeline or Schedule (approx): Project would conclude no later than May 1, 2026
	Projected Budget: $5,200. Match from MMLC Executive Director is valued at $31 an hour for the project
	Attachment(s): W9


